
















































I do solemnly swear that: 

I am duly qualified, according to the Constitution of this State, to 
exercise the duties of the office to which I have been appointed, 
and that I will, to the best of my ability, discharge those duties and 
will preserve, protect and defend the Constitution of this State and 
of the United States; 

I pledge to uphold the integrity and independence of the judiciary; 
I pledge, in the discharge of my duties, to treat all persons who 
enter the courtroom with civility, fairness, and respect; I pledge to 
listen courteously, sit impartially, act promptly, and rule after 
careful and considerate deliberation; I pledge to seek justice, and 
justice alone; 

So help me God. 

ITEM I. C. 



ITEM IV. A. 



ITEM IV. B. 



ITEM IV. C. 



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager  
Carroll Williamson, Planning and Development Director 

Date: April 30, 2019 

Subject: First Reading of an ordinance to re-zone 1908 State Street (TMS# 
005769-08-004) from RS-3 (Single Family Residential) to C-3 (Central 
Commercial). 

________________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE  
Council approval is requested for the First Reading of an ordinance to re-zone 1908 
State Street (TMS# 005769-08-004) from RS-3 (Single Family Residential) to C-3 
(Central Commercial District). 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The City of Cayce owns this property.  This property was used as a residential property 
until the property was purchased by the City and the house demolished in 2017.  The C-
3 zoning classification is intended to promote the concentration and vitality of 
commercial and business areas of State Street.  In order for the City to use this property 
to support the surrounding State Street businesses, it needs to be re-zoned to C-3.     

1908 State Street is approximately 8,000 square feet with no structures. Properties 
adjacent to and across from this property along State Street are zoned C-3.  Toward the 
rear of the property, adjacent properties are zoned RS-3 (Single-Family Residential). 

The requested re-zoning is in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance and is permitted as 
a zoning district in accordance with the criteria of the Comprehensive Plan and Future 
Land Use Map. 

The Planning Commission considered the request for re-zoning at their meeting on April 
22, 2019. The rezoning request was opened to the public.  No members of the public 
spoke in favor or against the re-zoning request. 

The Planning Commission voted on the requested re-zoning, to the C-3 zoning 
designation, at the Planning Commission meeting on April 22, 2019.   

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission recommends Council approve First Reading of an Ordinance 
to re-zone 1908 State Street (TMS# 005769-08-004) from RS-3 (Single Family 
Residential to C-3(Central Commercial). 

ITEM V. A. 



 1  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA              ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
     ) 
CITY OF CAYCE   ) 
      

ORDINANCE 2019-03 
Amending Zoning Map and Rezoning 
Property Located at 1908 State Street 
(Tax Map Number 005769-08-004) from 
RS-3 to C-3 

 
 WHEREAS, Staff requested that the City of Cayce amend the Zoning Map to re-designate 
the property comprising and shown as 1908 State Street (TMS 5769-08-004), now zoned Single 
Family Residential (RS-3) to Central Commercial (C-3), and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this request to receive 
comments from the public and adjacent property owners, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on April 22, 2019, to review public comments 

and vote on recommending the rezoning request and unanimously voted to recommend this 
change to the existing zoning, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Cayce, 
in Council, duly assembled, that the property hereinafter listed, and as shown on the attached 
sketch, is hereby rezoned and reclassified on the Zoning Map of the City of Cayce as C-3, Central 
Commercial: 
 

Tax Map Number 005769-08-004 
1908 State Street  

 
 This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by Council. 
 
 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2019. 

 
                ______________________________ 
                Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________  
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _____________________ 
 
Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 
 
Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
         Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 



1908 State Street
Re-Zoning Request

RS-3

C-3

005769-01-006

004655-07-002

005769-08-013

005769-08-008

005769-08-009

004655-07-003

005769-08-004

004655-04-015

005769-08-001

004655-06-001

005769-08-010

005769-08-007

005769-01-007
005769-01-008

005769-01-009

005769-08-011

004655-04-016

005769-08-012

004655-06-003

004655-06-002

005769-08-002

004655-04-014

004655-07-001

005769-08-006

State St

1st St

Holland Ave

Clark St

Railroad St

Lexington Ave

Lyles St

Poplar St Granby St

Helen St

1st St

Lexington Ave

Legend
Properties Within 200' of rezoning request
1908 State St

Map Amendment 001-19
1908 State Street



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager  
Carroll Williamson, Planning and Development Director 

Date: April 30, 2019 

Subject: First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Zoning Ordinance Section 6.10 
(“Design Overlay District”) to Provide for a New I-77 Gateway Design 
Overlay District   

________________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE 
Council approval is requested for the First Reading of an Ordinance to create the I-77 
Gateway Design Overlay District in order to provide additional development standards 
and restrictions along the gateway into the City from Interstate 77 (I-77).   

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
Staff is proposing a zoning change to create a design overlay for the area south of 
Taylor Road, along the 12th Street Extension south to I-77 and all properties in the City 
south of I-77.  This Overlay District serves as a gateway to the City from Interstate 
77. The purpose of the I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District is to provide additional
development standards and restrictions to create an aesthetically pleasing and uniform
appearance.  This will extend and memorialize the campus-like standards for
landscaping and building design and setback that SCANA has created on its properties,
which make up a large portion of this Design Overlay District.

The Planning Commission considered the zoning request for creation of this Design 
Overlay District at their meeting on April 22, 2019. The zoning request was opened to 
the public.  No members of the public spoke in favor or against the request, though 
some members of the public had questions. 

The Planning Commission voted on the zoning request to create the I-77 Gateway 
Design Overlay District at the Planning Commission meeting on April 22, 2019.   

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission recommends Council approve First Reading of an Ordinance 
to create the I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District. 

ITEM V. B. 



 1  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
     ) 
CITY OF CAYCE   ) 
      

ORDINANCE 2019-04 
Amending Zoning Ordinance 
Section 6.10 (“Design Overlay 
District”) to Provide for a New I-77 
Gateway Design Overlay District 

 
WHEREAS, the Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the public 

to amend Section 6.10 (“Design Overlay District”) of the City of Cayce Zoning Ordinance 
to provide for a New I-77 Design Overlay District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a regularly scheduled public hearing 

on this request to receive comments from the public; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on April 22, 2019, to review public 
comments and vote on recommending the amended Section 6.10 (“Design Overlay 
District”) of the City of Cayce Zoning Ordinance and unanimously decided that they do 
recommend this amendment as shown on the attached document, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that Section 6.10 (“Design Overlay District”) of the 
City of Cayce Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended as shown on the attached document. 
 
 This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by 
Council. 
 
 
 DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2019. 

 
 
                ______________________________ 
                Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________  
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _____________________ 
 
Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 
 
Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
         Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 
 



Section 6.10 Design Overlay District 
 
Section 6.10-1 Creation; definition 
 

1) There are hereby created three design overlay districts: 
 

a. Knox Abbott Drive Design Overlay District, which shall parallel Knox 
Abbott Drive and shall extend from the street right-of-way the depth of each 
contiguous lot or 200', whichever is less. 
b. 12th Street Extension Design Overlay District, which shall parallel 12th 
Street Extension from Poplar Street south to Taylor Road/Old Taylor Road, and 
shall extend from the street right-of-way the depth of each contiguous lot or 
parcel or 500', whichever is less. 
c. I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District, which includes all properties 
between the CSX railroad right-of-way to the west, Congaree River to the East, 
Taylor Road/Old Taylor Road to the north, and City of Cayce city limits south 
of Interstate 77.  See Exhibit A for a map illustration of this District area. 

 
 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A: 
Map of I-77 
Gateway 
Design Overlay 
District 



Section 6.10-2 Purpose 
 
   1) Design Overlay Districts serve as gateways to the City.  In order to visually 
harmonize these gateways with existing development, additional restrictions and 
development standards are required to create an aesthetically pleasing and uniform 
appearance. 
 
Section 6.10-3 Uses 
 

1) Knox Abbott Drive Design Overlay District and 12th Street Extension Design 
Overlay District 

a. Permitted Uses.  Unless specifically prohibited by Section 6.10-3.1.b, 
the uses permitted within the underlying zoning district shall apply. 
b. Prohibited Uses 

i. Truck (stops) and freight terminals 
ii. Billboards 
iii. Outdoor sales and storage lots, including, but not limited to, 

vehicular, boat, trailers, recreational vehicles, campers, manufactured 
homes, flea markets, furniture, lumber, scrap metal and salvage 
operations 

iv. Sexually oriented businesses, night clubs and drinking places (bars 
and lounges) 

v. Communication towers and antennas, with the exception of small 
wireless facilities as defined in Article 12 

vi. Pawn shops, consumer cash lending secured by personal property 
vii. Kennels  
viii. Check cashing services 

 
2) I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District 

a. Permitted Uses.   Unless specifically prohibited by Section 6.10-
3.2.b, the uses permitted within the underlying zoning district shall apply, in 
addition to the following:  

i. Residential- single-family and multi-family 
ii. Light Industrial, commercial, office and institutional, public 

administration, and rural 
b. Prohibited Uses 

i. Any use which emits an obnoxious odor, noise, or sound which can 
be heard or smelled outside of any building or structure 

ii. Any operation primarily used as a distilling, refining, smelting, or 
mining operation 

iii. Any trailer court, labor camp, junkyard or stockyard provided, 
however, this prohibition shall not be applicable to the temporary use 
of construction trailers during periods of construction, reconstruction, or 
maintenance or the use of office and administrative trailers in 
connection with the marketing of lots or condominium units for sale 



iv. Any dumping, disposing, incineration, or reduction of garbage; 
provided however, this prohibition shall not be applicable to garbage 
compactors located near the rear of any building or any other approved 
location 

v. Any use involving selling or exhibiting pornographic materials or illicit 
drug-related paraphernalia 

vi. Any use involving selling the exhibition, either live or by other means 
to any degree, of nude or partially nude dancers or wait staff 

vii. Any massage parlors or similar establishments 
viii. Billboards 
ix. Pawn shops, consumer cash lending secured by personal property 
x. Check cashing services 
xi. Kennels 
xii. Outdoor sales and storage lots, including but not limited to vehicular, 

boat, trailers, recreational vehicles, campers, manufactured homes, 
flea markets, furniture, lumber, scrap metal, and salvage operations 

xiii. Mobile homes and mobile home parks 
c. Conditional Uses 

i. Communication Towers and Antennas are permitted as a conditional 
use in accordance with Article 7, Section 7.8. 

 
Section 6.10-4 Development Standards 
 

1) Knox Abbott Drive Design Overlay District 
a. Signage shall be in accord with the requirements for signage in the C-3 
District. 
b. No portion of a building constructed of unadorned masonry or metal siding 
shall front on or face Knox Abbott Drive 
c. Colors shall be consistent with the character of development 
d. All service utility lines shall be placed underground 
e. Walkways shall be provided between the building entrance and the 
sidewalk. 

2) 12th Street Extension Design Overlay District 
a. Signage shall be in accord with the requirements for signage in the C-3 
District. 
b. No portion of a building constructed of unadorned masonry or metal siding 
shall front on or face 12th Street Extension 
c. Colors shall be consistent with the character of development 
d. All service utility lines shall be placed underground 
e. No strip shopping malls shall be allowed 
f. Where possible, curb cuts and driveways shall be combined 
g. All buildings shall observe a fifty (50) foot setback from 12th Street 
Extension.  Except for walks, driveways and permitted signs, the required 
setback area (yard) shall be completely landscaped, in accord with guidelines 
contained in Article 10.  No off-street parking shall be permitted in the 
required setback area 



3) I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District 
a. Setbacks and Buffers 

i. 12th Street Extension 
a) All buildings shall observe a 50' setback from 12th Street 
Extension right-of-way. 
b) Except for walks, driveways and permitted signs, the required 
setback area (yard) shall be completely landscaped, in 
accordance with Article 10 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
c) No off-street parking shall be permitted in the required 
setback area. 

ii. Interior street right-of-way 
a) No setbacks required off of interior rights-of-way. 

iii. All buildings on parcels with industrial uses shall observe a 50’ 
setback from adjacent parcels with commercial or residential uses.  This 
setback shall be completely landscaped in accordance with the 
Landscaping section of this Overlay District and Article 10 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
b. Parking, Sidewalks, and Circulation 

i. Parking Requirements 
a) Parking counts shall not exceed requirements outlined in 
Article 9 Supplemental Off-Street Parking and Loading 
Regulations. 
b) All parking shall be paved unless otherwise approved by the 
Planning Director. 
c) No parking is allowed within the 50’ setback from 12th Street 
Extension 
d) The Planning Director may reduce parking counts by as much 
as 50% if the parking is being shared by different uses and if it 
meets regulatory requirements. Shared parking must comply with 
the following requirements: 

(1) Parking shall be located within 500 linear feet from the 
primary entrance of all the lots or uses sharing the parking. 
(2) Shared parking agreements must be documented 
through a written agreement of all lot owners of record. 

e) Parking structures are permitted but must meet this Overlay’s 
Building Design requirements for parking structures. 
f) An effort should be made to locate parking to the side and/or 
rear of the building it serves.  Parking lots shall not be closer than 
ten (10) feet of an inhabited structure to allow for sidewalks and 
landscaping. On-street parking shall not be closer than ten (10) 
feet of a building or structure.  

ii. Sidewalks and Interior Streets 
a) All interior streets shall have sidewalks. Parallel or diagonal 
parking on the street is also encouraged and medians are 



allowed. Safety, sidewalk connectivity, street trees and on street 
parking are the components which are encouraged. 
b) All sidewalks shall have a minimum width of 5 feet. Sidewalks 
creating an urban condition abutting a building shall have a 
minimum width of 8 feet and a minimum width of 10 feet if street 
trees are located within the sidewalk  
c) Pedestrian access shall be provided from the street sidewalk 
to the building. 

iii. Circulation 
a) Shared Drives and Access When applicable, driveways shall 
be shared throughout this Overlay District. 
b) Drive-thru Facilities that require drive-thru access will be 
permitted as a special exception, following Article 7, Section 7.16 
Special Exception General Criteria. 

c. Building Design 
i. The maximum height of any structure other than hotels shall be fifty 
feet (50’) and/or three floors.  The maximum height of a hotel shall be 
five (5) floors or 50 feet, whichever is less.  Height exceptions listed in 
Article 5, Section 5.2(4) shall apply. 

ii. A variety of facades and roofing is required along street frontage, to 
avoid large, uninterrupted planes. 

iii. To create variety and diversity, it is desirable to vary the masses 
within each building or structure so that uniformity of line and mass is 
avoided.  In addition, building projections should provide interest and 
variety through the use of windows, doors, eaves and parapets.  Building 
components should have proportions relative to the size and style of the 
building and interesting relationships to help avoid monotonous building 
elevations.  

iv. Material Selection  Use of the following materials is required: 
a) Natural Stone 
b) Brick 
c) Architectural precast concrete 
d) Cast-in-place concrete with texture 
e) New building materials, as they are developed or become 
available, will be given special consideration by the Planning 
Director provided their use is in harmony with the community 
appearance. Metal siding shall not be permitted unless 
specifically approved in writing by the Planning Director. 

v. Colors Natural, Earth tone colors, such as beiges and grays are 
required.  Natural brick is allowed.  Non-reflective finishes shall be used 
on exterior surfaces.   

vi. Other Structures and Items  
a) Electro-Mechanical System Electro-mechanical systems that 
utilize state-of-the-art technology relative to control and passive 
solar heating and cooling are encouraged. Roof mounted 
equipment shall be enclosed or screened.  On-grade equipment 



shall be screened by approved fencing and landscaping to 
required minimum heights.      Exposed exterior mechanical, 
electrical and plumbing elements shall be screened.  These 
elements shall be designed as part of the building architecture 
rather than as add-ons or appendages.  
b) Refuse Containers   Storage of all containers shall be 
screened from all views by an appropriately designed fence 
and/or landscaping. 
c) Miscellaneous Exterior Structures No artificial vegetation, 
exterior sculptures, fountains or similar items shall be 
constructed, placed or maintained on any Lot without the prior 
written approval of the Planning Director. 
d) Solar Panels Solar panels shall be designed as an integral 
part of the structure and concealed from street view. 

d. Landscaping  
i. The purpose of the landscaping is to 

a) Promote a compatible and unified landscape treatment.  
b) Provide a pleasant and well maintained appearance. 
c) Enhance the visual and environmental characteristics from 
the public rights-of-way around and within this Overlay District, 
particularly the access points into lots, Overlay entrance areas, 
and areas requiring screening or buffering and streetscapes.  
d) Safeguard and enhance property values.  

ii. Landscape Plan Requirements 
a) Plant schedule listing all proposed plant materials, their 
quantities, botanical name and common name of plant materials, 
height and spread of plant materials at installation, spacing for 
plant materials, and any special notes regarding plant material 
specification.  
b) Street, walkway, and parking area lighting locations. 
c) Irrigation plans.  
d) All plants shown on the submitted landscape plans shall be 
installed during the initial planting of the lot.  

iii. Landscape Planting Standards 
a) All plant material shall meet the current American Standard 
for Nursery Stock.                 

(1) Shade Trees-minimum of (3)-inch caliper at the time of 
installation.  Must be large-maturing tree species. 
(2) Street Trees-minimum of four (4)-inch caliper at the 
time of installation.  Must be large-maturing tree species 
(3) Accent Trees-minimum of three (3)-inch caliper or ten 
(10) feet in height for  multi stem trees at the time of 
installation 
(4) Evergreen Trees-minimum eight (8) feet height at the 
time of installation 



(5) Evergreen Shrubs-minimum 18-inch height or five (5) 
gallon shrubs 
(6) Deciduous Shrubs-minimum 24-inch height or five (5) 
gallon shrubs 
(7) Seasonal Interest Areas-planted to create full coverage 
of the bed at mid-season 
(8) Sod-Bermuda is recommended                                                                             
Caliper shall be measured with a diameter tape at 12 
inches above ground. Height shall be measured from the 
soil line. 

iv. Minimum Landscape Requirements The following minimum 
landscape requirements have been developed to provide a consistent, 
high quality aesthetic to all areas of this Overlay District. These 
requirements have been separated into the following landscape areas 

a) Entrances Each entrance will be planted with a consistent 
landscape design that includes a variety of plant types that 
provide year-round seasonal interest. 
b) Street Trees Species The primary street trees recommended 
to be planted are Lacebark Elm and Live Oaks, or other species 
as approved by the Planning Director, planted 40-foot on center. 

(1) All street trees shall be limbed up to a minimum 8 feet 
height where applicable for visibility.  
(2) All street trees not in tree grates shall be mulched 
with double hammered mulch. 

v. Perimeter Landscape Buffers Perimeter landscape buffers are 
important to provide a consistent, high quality view from adjacent 
streets. The transition zone indicated in the graphic below, refers to the 
grade change required to raise the building elevation out of the flood 
plain. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

a) Street Trees  Street trees shall be planted in the street tree 
zone along the street tree planting line, as shown in the graphic 
above. The street trees in the perimeter buffer will create a 
consistent planting edge and visually unify this Overlay District. 

(1) Street trees shall be planted at 40 feet on center in 
perimeter landscape buffers. All street trees shall be 
limbed up to a minimum 8 feet height where applicable 
for visibility. A minimum area of 50 square feet shall be 
mulched uniformly at the base of each street tree.  

b) Shrubs Shrubbery shall be planted in the transition zone 
within perimeter planting buffers.   A minimum of 50 shrubs shall 
be planted for every 100 feet of perimeter landscape buffer.  A 
maximum of three types of shrubs shall be planted for every 100 
feet of perimeter landscape buffer. All shrub planting beds shall 
be mulched. 
c) Ground Covers/Perennials Ground cover/perennial 
landscape improvements shall be planted in the transition zone 
within the perimeter planting buffers.  A minimum of 300 square 
feet of ground cover/perennial landscape improvements shall be 
planted for every 100 feet of perimeter landscape buffer. 
Ground cover/perennial landscape improvement areas shall be 
grouped in masses a minimum of 100 square feet in size. All 
ground cover/perennial landscape improvements areas shall be 
mulched. 
d) Lawn Lawn areas can be located within the flex zone, street 
tree zone, and the transition zone. 
e) Buffering between different land uses in accordance with 
Article 10 of the Zoning Ordinance may be required. 

vi. Parking Area Landscape All parking areas shall provide and 
maintain both interior and perimeter landscape improvements. These 
guidelines shall not apply to parking structures or on-street parking 
spaces within this Overlay District.  Landscape islands located at the 
ends of parking bays or within parking bays shall be a minimum of 135 
square feet for single bay parking areas and 270 square feet for double 
bay parking areas. The minimum width of landscape islands shall be 9 
feet. See graphic below.                                               

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
a) A maximum of 15 parking spaces are allowed in a 
continuous row without a required landscape island. See 
graphic below.                                                               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b) Parking islands  All landscape improvement areas shall be 
protected from damage caused by vehicles using some method 
of vertical structure, i.e. curbs, wheel stops, or other similar 
structures.  Parking islands used for stormwater management 
are permitted, as approved by the Planning Director. 
c) Shade Trees One shade tree shall be required for every 
2000 square feet of total parking area. Accent trees may be 
used in areas directly under or within close proximity of 
overhead power lines. Each parking space shall be within 50 
feet of the trunk of at least one shade tree. Required shade 
trees for parking areas shall be located around the perimeter or 
in landscape islands within the parking area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Shade Tree Spacing 
 
 



(1) All shade trees shall be limbed up to a minimum 8 
feet height.  

d) Shrubs All parking lots must be screened with shrubs or a 
permanent structure.  Shrubs for screening shall be planted so 
that within two years of planting there is a continuous evergreen 
screen at a two (2) foot height.  

vii. Building and Site Landscape  The following requirements for 
building and site landscape will provide consistent, high quality site 
improvements for areas adjacent and around structures within this 
Overlay District. It is critical the building entrances, foundation 
plantings, outdoor gathering spaces, site circulation corridors, and 
other site areas promote a uniform aesthetic.  

a) A minimum of 10% of the total site’s impervious area shall 
be designated as site landscape areas. These areas shall 
include a mix of shade trees, accent trees, shrubs, and ground 
cover/perennial planting areas. Landscape site areas shall not 
include lawn areas.  

viii. Landscape Maintenance The lot owner shall be responsible for the 
maintenance of all landscaped areas. These areas shall be maintained 
in perpetuity and in a high quality condition, including the replanting of 
plant materials as needed to replace unhealthy or dead specimens.    

ix. Irrigation Drip and spray irrigation systems shall be installed to 
maintain the vitality and health of landscape improvements. In the 
event that irrigation water contains potential harmful minerals, irrigation 
systems will be required to include a filtering system to prevent stains 
to buildings, walkways, pavements, and other site elements.  

 
e. Lighting 

i. Lighting Design Concepts In general, site lighting shall be low glare 
lighting.  Site lighting shall comply with this section and the City of 
Cayce ordinances.  Within this Overlay District, all freestanding street 
lights and pedestrian lights used for lighting exterior spaces shall be 
the same style, height, color and type and intensity. On each lot, all 
other lighting fixtures shall be from the same family of fixtures with 
regard to design, materials, color of fixture and color of light.  No 
fiberglass poles shall be used. (Note: All lighting sources shall have 
internal cut-off optics, prismatic refractors, or building side shields to 
prevent glare to adjacent land uses).  

a) Exterior lights should be used to accent entrances and 
special features, roadways, parking and pedestrian corridors.  
High levels of light are not desirable.  Intensity should be no 
greater than required for automobile and pedestrian safety.  
b) Lighting of street front interior window displays in retail 
establishments is encouraged even after business hours to 
create visually interesting storefronts.  



ii. “Light Fixture Design” Light sources may be of a concealed type or 
ornamental visible type.  The design of poles, bollards and fixtures 
shall be integrated with the general site design.  Parking lot lighting 
shall be a “cut-off” luminaire design to avoid glare on adjacent 
properties.  Up lighting of trees and fountains, accent lighting of shrubs 
and entrances and silhouette lighting may be used to create special 
effects.  

a) Building mounted lighting is restricted to private use areas 
such as courtyards and shall not be used for lighting parking 
areas or sidewalks.  Building mounted light fixtures shall be 
shielded and shall not project above the fascia or roof line.  The 
shields shall be painted to match the surface to which they are 
attached.  
b) Colored, moving or flashing lights will not be permitted 
except for the Christmas holidays.  

iii. Listed below are the lighting standards for streets and parking: 
a) Streets/Parking/Driveway/Loading Area Fixture 320 watt 
Metal Halide Shoebox-style fixture mounted on 30-foot square, 
direct-embedded bronze aluminum poles are required.  
b) A lighting plan with locations, types, heights and colors is 
required. 
c) Lighting for Pedestrian Areas Lighting for sidewalks, plazas 
and other pedestrian areas shall be illuminated with pedestrian 
scaled lights that have more detail and interest than those used 
for streets/parking/driveway/loading areas. To illuminate a street 
along a sidewalk a mixture of both the pedestrian and parking 
lot style lights may be used but the Illuminating Engineering 
Society of North America (IESNA) standards may not be 
exceeded.  Light-Emitting Diode (LED) or Metal Halide lamps 
are required, unless otherwise approved by the Planning 
Director. 
d) Lighting Usage Access roads and pedestrian circulation 
areas shall be illuminated to provide safety in after-hours/night-
time traffic circulation.  Lights shall be integrated in the design 
with other elements such as trees, pedestrian walks, crossings, 
signage and planting. 
e) Lighting within parking areas shall be coordinated with 
parking lot design.  Poles shall be located within the landscaped 
islands whenever feasible.  Poles shall be mounted at ground 
level.  Concrete pedestals are not allowed unless poles are 
located in areas where they are not protected from cars by a 
raised curb.  Then they shall be located a minimum of 5 feet 
from the face of curb.  The scale of the parking area should be 
considered in selection of pole height and spacing. 
f) Types of Lighting Equipment Roadway and parking areas 
shall be lighted using LED or metal halide lamp fixtures.   



iv. Pedestrian, entry and landscape areas shall be lighted with LED or 
metal halide lamp fixtures.  Lights may be pole-mounted or bollard 
type, and must be located to provide safe and secure conditions. 

 
f. Signage and Graphics 

i. Purpose The purpose of the site sign standards is to establish a 
coordinated graphic program that provides project identification and 
directional communication in a distinctive and aesthetically pleasing 
manner.   

ii. No signs whatsoever (including but not limited to commercial and 
similar signs as well as signs of contractors performing work on 
existing Parcels or Lots or signs to advertise the property for sale) 
shall, without the City of Cayce’s written approval of plans and 
specifications thereof, be installed, altered or maintained on any parcel 
or lot, or on any portion of a structure or motor vehicle visible from the 
exterior thereof. 

iii. General Requirements  All signs, including identification, 
temporary, and informational, including those in setback areas, on 
loading docks, parking facilities, on buildings, storage areas, etc., 
along with appropriate plans and specifications, shall be first submitted 
to the Planning Director for written approval.  Such plans and 
specifications for each sign shall include, but not be limited to the 
color(s), dimensions, location on the site, height, copy, type of 
illumination, and other characteristics.  No sign shall be erected, 
substituted, changed, or modified on the property without the prior 
written approval by the Planning Director.  

a) All temporary signs, including construction signs, “For 
Lease” or “For Sale” signs shall be approved by the Planning 
Director.  
b) Signs may be electrified, but will be non-flashing. 
c) Strip lighting rather than flood lights shall be used for sign 
lighting.  
d) There are four types of signs employed within individual lots 
– identification, directional, vehicular control and temporary.  
Any other type of sign treatment shall not be allowed unless 
granted a variance by the Planning Director. The Planning 
Director at its sole discretion shall have the authority to grant 
variances to this paragraph on a case by case basis. 

iv. Identification signs Each entrance to each lot shall have one sign, 
oriented to each street on which premises has frontage, identifying the 
name of the business located therein. 

a) Streetscape identification signs for buildings with more than 
two occupants shall include only the building address and 
name.  Individual occupant identification shall be confined to on-
site directories and/or building mounted identification. 



b) Freestanding or Ground Signs.  Freestanding or ground 
signs are permitted for use, subject to the following 
requirements: The sign may not be placed within a required 
buffer area, but may be placed within other landscaped areas.  

(1) For Lots with a frontage of less than 150 feet, signs 
shall not exceed 32 square feet in area, per sign face on 
double sided signs.  Signs of up to 60 square feet in 
area, per sign face on double sided signs, may be 
allowed for properties with frontage of 150 feet or more 
with written Planning Director approval. 
(2) One additional freestanding sign or ground sign may 
be allowed upon review by the Planning Director 
provided the Lot has a frontage greater than 150 feet.  
The sum of the area of all signs shall not exceed 80 
square feet plus .25 square feet for each foot of street 
frontage in excess of 150 feet.  No individual sign may 
exceed 60 square feet.  Total square footage of two signs 
shall not exceed 160 square feet.  
(3) Height of freestanding signs shall be in accord with 
the requirements of the C-3 Zoning District.  
(4) Signs shall be located so as not to obstruct visibility at 
intersections. 

c) Building/Wall Signs Wall signs are permitted, subject to the 
following requirements: Signs may either be flat and erected 
against the principle building face, or projecting, perpendicular 
to the building face.  

(1) The sign shall not extend more than 8 inches beyond 
the building, except in the case of a sign on the lower 
slope of a roof or a canopy roof, where the sign may 
extend the distance required to make the sign vertical.  
(2) The sign must maintain a vertical clearance of not 
less than 9 feet above ground level. 
(3) The sign may extend up to 8 inches into a front 
setback.  
(4) The sign may not extend beyond the edges of the wall 
to which it is attached, except when the sign is 
contiguous on 2 adjacent walls of the same building, the 
connecting portion may extend to, but not beyond the 
face of the adjoining portion. 
(5) Combined area of signs shall not exceed 10% of the 
square footage of the front of the building, excluding 
“false fronts”.  
(6) The sign may not prevent the free entrance and exit 
from any window, door or fire escape.  
(7) The total sign area shall be the sum of all signs on the 
wall, including signs on the wall surface, signs affixed to 



the wall parallel and in the same plane as the wall, signs 
on awnings or canopies, window signs, door signs, signs 
on the lower slopes of roofs or canopy roofs and signs on 
parapets above roof.  

v. Directional Signs  Directional signs indicating building numbers, 
areas of specific tenants shall be of standard design and no more than 
ten and one-half (10.5) square feet in size for building address and 
pedestrian directional signs and thirty (30) square feet for tenant 
directories.  They shall be of materials common to the architecture 
within this Overlay area, and as small as possible to provide driver 
visibility from a vehicle.  

vi. Vehicular Control Signs All vehicular control signs shall be of 
standard design and have panel faces and heights which meet the 
requirements of the U.S. Highway Transportation Standards. 

vii. Temporary Signs There are two types of temporary signs allowed 
on lots:  construction and real estate marketing.  Only one of each type 
of temporary sign shall be permitted on a site at any given time, and 
must be removed immediately upon completion of the construction or 
marketing activity.  All temporary signs must be approved by the 
Planning Director prior to erection. 

a) Temporary signs shall be of post and panel wood 
construction, and shall have a total height of no more than 
seven (7) feet.  Message panels shall have a maximum size of 
forty (40) square feet.  
b) All contractor or subcontractor signs shall be removed within 
thirty (30) days following completion of their project.  
c) Temporary signs shall be non-illuminated.  

viii. Illumination Signs shall be illuminated only by a steady stationary, 
shielded light source, directed solely at the sign or internal to it, without 
causing glare for motorists, pedestrians or neighboring premises.  

a) Illuminated signs may produce up to one foot candle of 
illumination four feet from the sign.  
b) Neon signs are not permitted. 
c) Internally illuminated signs are allowed, but the background 
must be solid, illuminating only the message or logo.  

ix. Prohibited Devices   
a) No sign shall move, make noise or employ blinking, flashing, 
or strobe lights, or exposed fluorescent lamps.  
b) No sign, whether temporary or permanent, is permitted 
within any road right-of-way or intersection sight triangle.  
c) To avoid confusion with traffic control signals and signs, 
colored lights and illuminated signs employing colors used in 
traffic signal lights are prohibited in view of any signalized 
intersection, and any imitation of official traffic signs or signals is 
prohibited.    



x. General Signage Specifications All components and finished 
signage within this program shall be manufactured by professional 
fabricators.  An example of each contractor’s and sub-contractor’s 
previous work shall be reviewed prior to production.  

a) All finishes shall be anodized aluminum and bear a five-year 
guarantee against chipping, peeling, fading, and chalking under 
normal use and exposure.  
b) All steel shall be finished with primer, intermediate coat and 
topcoat.  
c) All screws, brackets, and fasteners in contact with aluminum 
shall be stainless steel or aluminum; however, no fasteners 
shall be exposed to view.  
d) All aluminum sheet for signage shall be 0.125 inch unless 
otherwise specified.  
e) All seams where welding is required shall be ground smooth.  
All depressions or raised areas due to swelling shall be filled or 
ground smooth.  Pop riveting in visually exposed areas will not 
be permitted.  
f) All signs (where it applies) shall conform to standard SCDOT 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and 
Highways specifications concerning break away features.  

xi. Installation All freestanding signs shall be mounted in concrete.  
Footing size shall be determined by fabricator/structural engineer.  All 
concrete footings shall be covered over with four (4) inches of soil 
minimum.  

a) Where required, the general contractor shall provide 
electrical stub-out for ground lighting of signs.  
b) All building mounted sign installation methods shall be 
checked for strength by licensed engineer upon final 
determination of building construction materials. 
c) All concrete footings shall be designed by licensed engineer.  
d) All sign locations shall be approved by the Planning Director 
and must conform to all local codes with respect to height and 
setback requirements 
 

Section 6.10-5 Exemptions 
 
If Sections 6.10-3 or 6.10-4 conflict with a use or development standard that is 
specifically permitted in a PDD or DAD, then the PDD or DAD use or development 
standard shall prevail. 

 
       

   
 
    

 



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager  
Carroll Williamson, Planning and Development Director 

Date: April 30, 2019 

Subject: First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Zoning Map and Rezoning 
Property to Create a New Design Overlay District (I-77 Gateway Design 
Overlay District)  

________________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE 
Council approval is requested for the First Reading of an Ordinance to amend the 
zoning map and rezone property to create a new design overlay district (I-77 Gateway 
Design Overlay District) 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

Staff is proposing a zoning change to create a design overlay for the area south of 
Taylor Rd, along the 12th Street Extension south to I-77 and all properties in the City 
south of I-77.  This Overlay District serves as a gateway to the City from Interstate 
77. The purpose of the I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District is to provide additional 
development standards and restrictions to create an aesthetically pleasing and uniform 
appearance.  This will extend and memorialize the campus-like standards for 
landscaping and building design and setback that SCANA has created on its properties, 
which make up a large portion of this Design Overlay District.

The Planning Commission considered the zoning request for creation of this Design 
Overlay District at the meeting on April 22, 2019. The zoning request was opened to the 
public.  No members of the public spoke in favor or against the request, though some 
members of the public had questions. 

The Planning Commission voted on the zoning request to create the I-77 Gateway 
Design Overlay District and amending the zoning map, appropriately, at the planning 
commission meeting on April 22, 2019.   

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission recommends Council approve First Reading of an Ordinance 
amending the zoning map and rezoning property to create a new design overlay district 
(I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District) 

ITEM V. C. 



 1  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
    ) 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) 
    ) 
CITY OF CAYCE  ) 
      

ORDINANCE 2019-05 
Amending Zoning Map and Rezoning 
Property to Create a New Design Overlay 
District (I-77 Gateway Design Overlay 
District) 

 
 WHEREAS, Staff, as an agent of the City, requested that the City of Cayce amend the Zoning 
Map to re-designate the properties comprising and shown on the attached map, to create a new design 
overlay district (I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District) , and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this request to receive 
comments from the public and adjacent property owners, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on April 22, 2019, to review public comments and 

vote on recommending the rezoning request and unanimously voted to recommend this change to the 
existing zoning, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Cayce, in 
Council, duly assembled, that the properties hereinafter listed, and as shown on the attached sketch, 
are hereby rezoned and reclassified on the Zoning Map of the City of Cayce as the I-77 Gateway 
Design Overlay District: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  *formerly 12th Street Extension Overlay District 
This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by Council. 
 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2019. 

 
                ______________________________ 
                Elise Partin, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
______________________________  
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _____________________ 
 
Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 
 
Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
         Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 

005799-01-012 005800-03-004 006897-01-067* 006900-01-019 
005799-01-013 005800-03-005 006900-01-002 006900-01-020* 
005799-01-014 005800-03-007 006900-01-007* 006900-01-021* 
005799-01-020 005800-03-008 006900-01-008 006900-01-023 
005799-01-024* 006897-01-010 006900-01-009* 006900-01-024* 
005800-02-004* 006897-01-011 006900-01-012 006900-01-026* 
005800-02-006* 006897-01-013 006900-01-013* 006900-01-028* 
005800-02-007* 006897-01-042* 006900-01-014 006900-01-029 
005800-02-009 006897-01-065 006900-01-017  
005800-03-002 006897-01-066 006900-01-018 



C O N G A R E E   R I V E R

I-77 North I-77 South

I-26 East
I-26 West

12th Street Ext

Dixiana Rd

Old State Rd

Taylor Rd

N Eden Dr

Moss Creek Dr

Shady Ln

Sunnyside Dr

I-77 Exit Ramp

Saxe Gotha Rd

Elm St

Tamwood Cir

Scana Pkwy

Charleston Hwy

Pine Ln

Oa
k S

t

Oak Ln

I-26 Exit Ramp

S Eden Dr

Bray
 Pa

rk 
Rd

Northland Dr

Pecan Ln

Haynes Ln Tufton Ct

Eldon Dr

Summerland Dr Tree St
Unnamed Frontage Rd

Clovis Pointe Way

Starmount Dr

Operations Way

Do
gw

oo
d L

n

Shadow LnDo
gw

oo
d S

t

Bonhill Dr

Maple St

Pine Ridge Dr

Bulldog Blvd

Pa
lle

t D
r

Evergreen Ln

Tiffany Trl

Starcrest Rd

I-26 East Ramp To I-77 North

Peach St

Produce Ln

Co
yo

te 
Ct

Ann LnArden Ln

Lonesome Ct

Maintenance Way

Rocky Ln

I-77 Exit Ramp

Old State Rd

Legend
I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District
Parcels within 200' of Overlay District

Map Amendment 002-19
I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District

2,300 0 2,3001,150 Feet Ü



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: May 3, 2019  

Subject: First Reading of an Ordinance amending City Code Section 28-114 
(“Discharging Firearms”) to Provide for Additional Exceptions 

________________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE  
Council approval is requested for the First Reading Of an Ordinance amending City 
Code Section 28-114 (“Discharging Firearms”) to allow businesses who manufacture or 
repair firearms to test fire them in a safe contained location on premise. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The City of Cayce was approached by the owners of Amick’s Guns, a business that is 
currently located in Gaston that manufactures custom firearms and repairs them.  
Amick’s Guns is wishing to relocate their business to the City of Cayce and is currently 
looking at several different locations to operate. 

Businesses that manufacture and repair firearms need to be able to test fire the 
weapons to ensure that they are working properly. Currently City Ordinance 28-114 does 
not allow for the test firing of weapons. The proposed amendment allows for limited 
exception to this only for properly licensed gun manufacturers and includes regulations 
and inspection requirements that ensure testing is done safely and without interruption to 
surrounding businesses or communities. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approve First Reading of an Ordinance amending City Code 
Section 28-114 to allow businesses who manufacture or repair firearms to test fire them 
in a safe, contained location on premise. 

ITEM V. D. 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
     ) 
CITY OF CAYCE   ) 
      

ORDINANCE 2019-06 
Amending City Code Section 28-114  
(“Discharging Firearms”) to Provide 
for Additional Exceptions  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is appropriate to amend City 
Code section 28-114 (“Discharging firearms”), in order to provide exceptions to the 
prohibition on the discharge of firearms within the City limits, so as to allow, under certain 
circumstances, for the discharge of firearms in connection with certain business activities 
that require the testing of firearms after manufacture or repair,  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, as follows: 
 
Section 28-114 (“Discharging firearms’) of Article V (“Offenses Against Public 

Safety”) of Chapter 28 (“Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions’”) of the Cayce City Code 
is hereby amended to add a new subsection (c) to read:  

 
“(c) This section shall not apply to a properly licensed firearms 

manufacturing or repair business that, in the performance of recognized 
procedures and guidelines for firearms manufacturing or repair, must test fire 
firearms for reliability and functionality prior to transfer. The test firing site must 
be located within an M-1 (Light Industrial) or M-2 (Heavy Industrial) District, safe, 
indoors and controlled at all times so as to not allow any projectiles to leave the 
test firing site and so as to not produce noise that interferes with the peace and 
enjoyment of other properties. The City Fire Marshal and a designee of the 
Department of Public Safety shall inspect the test firing site at least annually to 
insure compliance with this subsection.“ 

 
 

 This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second and final reading. 
 
  



 DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2019. 

 
 
                ______________________________ 
                Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________  
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _____________________ 
 
Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 
 
Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
         Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 
 

 



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: April 30, 2019  

Subject: Request from the Central Midlands Council of Governments to participate 
in the Central Midlands Hazard Mitigation Plan 2021  

________________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE  
The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) is in the process of applying 
for grant funds to hire a consultant to update portions of the Central Midlands Hazard 
Mitigation Plan for 2021. The City of Cayce is a stakeholder in the current Hazard 
Mitigation Plan. CMCOG is requesting a Letter of Agreement to participate in the update 
from all current stakeholders, which is a requirement of the grant application.   

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The City of Cayce partners with the CMCOG and cities and counties in the Midlands 
Region (Fairfield, Lexington, Newberry and Richland counties) for natural hazard risk 
assessment and mitigation planning. Various types of natural hazards such as flooding, 
tornadoes and winter weather threaten the region and endanger the health and safety of 
residents, jeopardize economic vitality and imperil environmental quality. To minimize 
vulnerabilities, the CMCOG initiated hazard mitigation planning for the region in 2004. 
The mitigation plan was updated in 2011, then again most recently in 2016.  The City of 
Cayce adopted the most recent plan in February 2017.   

Participating in hazard mitigation planning is important for the City of Cayce not only for 
health and safety reasons, but also to be eligible for certain grant funding. As part of the 
Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
requires all counties to create and maintain a Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP). A FEMA 
approved and locally adopted HMP is a requirement to solicit funds under the Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP). Having a HMP is also typically a requisite for 
obtaining other federal grants such as the Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) and Flood 
Mitigation Assistance (FMA) grants. 

The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) is in the process of applying 
for grant funds to update the hazard risk and vulnerability assessment portions of the 
Central Midlands Hazard Mitigation Plan for 2021. The application is due on May 31st, 
2019. 

The Letter of Agreement that CMCOG is requesting specifically states that the Cayce 
will 

• share any relevant data or information directly related to the completion of grant
requirements of the Central Midlands Hazard Mitigation Plan;

• participate in the planning process of the Plan, including attending planning,

ITEM V. E. 



discussion, and workshop meetings; and 
• adopt the Plan as its own Hazard Mitigation Plan when it is completed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City provide the requested Letter of Agreement in support of 
the CMCOG applying for grant funding to update the Central Midlands Hazard Mitigation 
Plan for 2021.  



May 3, 2019 

Mr. Allen Fountain 
State Hazard Mitigation Officer 
South Carolina Emergency Management Division 
2779 Fish Hatchery Road, West Columbia, SC 29172 

Ref: Central Midlands Hazard Mitigation Plan 2021 Letter of Agreement 

Dear Mr. Fountain: 

Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) is in the process of applying for FEMA/SCEMD Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program funds, due on May 31st, 2019 to update its Central Midlands Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(henceforth also referenced as “the Plan”).  This plan is required under the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 in order 
for a local government to be eligible to apply for FEMA Disaster Mitigation funding.  As part of the grant 
application process, any participating jurisdiction must provide a Letter of Agreement confirming that they will 
take part in the planning process and adopt the multi-jurisdictional Plan after its development. 

The City of Cayce (henceforth also referenced as “Cayce”) intends to participate in the planning process of the 
Plan’s 2021 update. As such, Cayce agrees to: 

• Share any relevant data or information directly related to the completion of grant requirements of the
Central Midlands Hazard Mitigation Plan.

• Participate in the planning process of the Plan, including attending planning, discussion, and workshop
meetings.

• Adopt the Plan as its own Hazard Mitigation Plan when it is completed.

CMCOG therefore agrees to the following duties: 
• Complete all FEMA/SCEMD grant requirements and deliver an updated Central Midlands Hazard

Mitigation Plan ready for adoption.
• Communicate any information necessary for X to participate in the planning process of the Plan update.
• Provide technical support in the use and implementation of the Plan recommendations.

If you should have any questions or need to contact me, my office phone number is (803)550-9520. 

Sincerely, 

Tracy Hegler, AICP 
City Manager 
City of Cayce 



________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To:      Mayor and Council 

From:  Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: May 3, 2019 

Re:  Supportive Municipal Judge Agreement with Lexington County 
 __________________________________________________________ 

Issue 
Council approval is requested to execute a revised Supportive Municipal Judge 
Agreement with Lexington County for bond and other judicial duties.   

Background/Discussion 
Since 2002, the County of Lexington and Chief Magistrate have assisted the City in 
setting bail bonds, as well as counter sign/issue arrest and or search warrants, 
address failure to appear bench warrants and open sealed sentences as needed by 
the City when appropriate. 

The agreement has not been updated, nor compensation increased, since 2002. 

At the Direction of the County Administrator, Lexington County is updating all its 
agreements and proposes to increase the quarterly compensation because the 
number of defendants arrested by the City, along with the amount of documentation 
that has to be provided during the bond hearing, has increased.  The increase is 
$1600 per year: currently $2,504 per quarter and proposed $2,905 per quarter. 

Recommendation: 
City staff recommends that City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a 
revised Supportive Municipal Judge Agreement. 

ITEM V. F. 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  SUPPORTIVE MUNICIPAL JUDGE 
)  AGREEMENT FOR BOND AND OTHER 
)  JUDICIAL DUTIES WITH THE CITY 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  )  OF  CAYCE 

This agreement is made and entered into this ______ day of _________, 2019, between the 
City of Cayce, South Carolina, hereinafter referred to as “City,” and the County of Lexington, 
hereinafter referred to as “County,” and the Magistrates for Lexington County, hereinafter referred 
to as “Magistrates.” 

WHEREAS, City desired to provide persons charged with offenses by the City police 
speedy and efficient access to a public official empowered to administer Municipal Court issues 
and  to conduct bond proceedings and handle other judicial duties where appropriate; AND  

WHEREAS, the County of Lexington and the Chief Magistrate desire to accommodate the 
City in this regard insofar as feasible and within the best interests of the citizens of the County, 
AND 

WHEREAS, the Supreme Court of South Carolina has authorized a procedure for assigning 
magistrates to serve as supportive Municipal Judges; 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority of the Supreme Court of South Carolina 
and Lexington County Council, and in accordance with the procedures established by the South 
Carolina Court Administration, the following agreement is entered into: 

1. The Chief Magistrate for Lexington County shall assign all magistrates to serve as
supportive Municipal Judges in order to set bail bonds, counter sign/issue arrest and
or search warrants, address failure to appear bench warrants and open sealed
sentences as needed by the City.

2. The supportive Municipal Judge work for bonding procedures may take place
during regularly scheduled bond court hours, assigned by order of the Chief Justice
dated September 19, 2007.

3. The City agrees to pay to the County an amount, which reflects payment of wages
and benefits for the services of the Magistrate.  The County will increase the
compensation the Magistrate receives as provided by the City, and the County shall
make the appropriate withholding, which shall be disbursed equally among all
Magistrates.  The QUARTERLY COMPENSATION will be:

$2,905.00 plus the employers’ portion of FICA, Police Retirement, and
Worker’s Compensation.  The amount is to be paid to the County on the second
Friday of the last month of the quarter.



4. The parties hereto agree that this agreement is efficient use of judicial resources.  
Nothing contained herein shall change the status of the Magistrate so assigned in 
his/her relationship to the County as County Magistrate 

 
5. This AGREEMENT shall be terminable at the request of any party upon sixty (60) 

days written notice to the other parties.  Otherwise, the agreement shall continue in 
effect until the end of the current fiscal year.  The agreement will automatically 
extend for the next fiscal year unless written notice not to extend is given by any of 
the parties.  This Agreement shall be submitted for approval of County Council 
each fiscal year.  If approved by County Council, this Agreement shall continue in 
effect without re-signing the Agreement each fiscal year. 

 
6. This agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties, and no 

oral representations shall be binding unless specifically included herein.  Any 
change or modification hereto must be in writing and signed by both parties. 

 
8. This agreement replaces any and all previous agreements of the parties in regard 
 to providing the assignment of Magistrates to serve as Municipal Judges. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals this 
______ day of ___________, 2019. 

 
WITNESSES: 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
      City of Cayce 
      By: _____________________________  
      Its:  _____________________________ 
____________________________  
 
 
____________________________   ________________________________  
      County of Lexington_______________ 
      By: _____________________________  
____________________________   Its:  _____________________________ 
 
 
 
____________________________             ________________________________ 
      The Honorable Rebecca Adams 
      Chief Magistrate, Lexington County 

 



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: May 7, 2019  

Subject: Draft Budget Updates – Utility Fund & General Fund 
________________________________________________________________ 

Utility Fund Budget 

Upon detailed review of rates and projected earnings, significant changes have been 
made to the Utility Fund budget revenue, increasing it from its prior projection of 
$20,201,944 to $21,099,801.  

Cost savings in expenditures is also proposed through lease purchase of certain capital 
items, removal of some items better funded by other sources and salary savings by 
hiring certain new personnel mid-year.  These adjustments can reduce the Utility Fund 
requested expenditure by $ 623,908.50 (Exhibit A). 

The expenditures do not include a cost of living increase for employees.  Including a 
COLA would increase the budget by the following amounts: 

Total Salary & 
Wages 

$ 3,411,612.10 

1% COLA $     34,116.12 
2% COLA $     68,232.24 
3% COLA $   102,348.40 

General Fund Budget 

On the revenue side, staff has prepared estimates of additional revenue sources for the 
General Fund budget, such as a rental property registration fee, a local accommodation 
tax and applying the millage rollback (Exhibit B). 

If all those options are approved as proposed, the General Fund revenue can be 
increased by $452,452. 

ITEM V. H. 



Similar expenditure adjustments were made to the General Fund draft budget as with 
the Utility.  Those adjustments could reduce the General Fund requested revenue by 
$1,057,260 (Exhibit C). 
 

The expenditures do not include a cost of living increase for employees. Including a 
COLA would increase the budget by the following amounts:  

Total Salary & 
Wages 

$ 7,227,257.23 

1% COLA $     72,272.57 
2% COLA $   144,545.10  
3% COLA $   216,817.70  

 

In both budgets, medical insurance costs include the City’s required employer 
contribution plus the employee’s individual contribution, as has been done in prior years 
per Council’s approval. 

 
Exhibits: 

A. Utility Fund - Updated Capital Equipment/Personnel Requests  

B. General Fund – New Revenue Considerations  

C. General Fund - Updated Capital Equipment/Personnel Requests  

 



 FY20 Utility Fund Captial Equipment Personnel Requests
5-7-19

Utility Division FY20 Request 5-7-19
Request Notes

1909 Billing
Replace Truck 4136 $27,000 Lease purchase option
Replace Truck 4159 $27,000 Lease purchase option

Total 1909 Utilities - Billing $54,000 -$              

1911 Water Treatment Plant
Generator & Transfer Switch (75% reimbursable grant) $585,000 $585,000
SCADA System PLC Replacement Upgrade $450,000 Special project account (fund balance)
(2) Variable Frequency Drives $36,000 $36,000
NETZSCH Pump $26,000 $26,000

Total 1911- Water Plant $1,097,000 $647,000

1912 Water Distribution
PUBWORKS Asset Management Software $10,000 Purchase from FY19 cost savings
1 new FTE: Meter Technician (salary & benefits) $53,817 26,909$        Mid-year hire/6 months salary & benefits
New Vehicle Ford F250 HD Utility Truck (for new position) $35,000 Lease purchase option

Total 1912-Water Distribution $98,817 26,909$        

1916 Wastewater Plant
Teledyne ISCO Model 5800 Refrigerated Sampler $6,720 $6,720
Scales for Chlorine and Sulfur Dioxide Cylinders $64,364 $64,364
Labconco Steam Scrubber Dishwasher $7,916 $7,916
Mobile Gantry $5,000 $5,000
(500) Kubota Membrane Panels $40,000 $40,000
Utility Trailer $6,000 $6,000

Total 1916-Wastewater Plant $130,000 $130,000

1917 Wastewater Collection
Duplex pump control panel for Cedarwood PS $15,000 $15,000
John Deere or Kubota zero turn lawn mower $15,000 $15,000
New Ford 450 chasis cab (2x4) extended cab truck to replace 4134 $48,000 Lease purchase option
1 new FTE: Pump Mechanic II (salary & benefits) $60,265 $60,265 Full year hire

Total 1917-Wastewater Collection $138,265 $90,265

1920 Septage & Grease
Sludge Trailer $100,000 $100,000
SOG Perforated Screen $10,000 $10,000
"Muffin Monster" Grinders $9,774 $9,774

Total 1920-Septage & Grease $119,774 $119,774

TOTAL $1,637,856 1,013,948$   

Total Capital Equipment $1,523,774 $926,774
Total Personnel $114,082 $87,174

$137,000 Total lease purchase options (cost savings)
$460,000 Removal options 

$26,908.50 Savings hiring personnel mid-year



Revenue Options for the General Fund Budget

New property registration program fee:

New local accomodations tax:

Increase sanitation fee/Propose new recycling fee:

Increase property taxes:
CPI for current year increase will be calculated at end of May. Current millage is 49.690. We have 2.760 mils in rollback
1 mil = $52,655

Actual 92% Collection
1 mil increase 52,655$         48,443$    
2 mil increase 105,310$       96,885$    
2.76 mil increase 145,328$       133,702$  

Home Value 1 mil increase
2 mil 

increase
2.76 mil 
increase

100,000$  4.00$             8.00$        9.40
150,000$  6.00$             12.00$      14.10
200,000$  8.00$             16.00$      18.80

New Revenue Summary

New property registration program fee: 29,750$    
New local accomodations tax: 262,000$  
Increase sanitation fee/Propose new recycling fee: 27,000$    
Increase property taxes by 2.76 mils: 133,702$  at 92% collection rate
Total: 452,452$  

$.50/month increase in Residential Sanitation Fees OR new Residential Recycling Fee to cover the increased cost of 
recycling. This would be a new, separate fee, or increase residential sanitation fee to $14.00 per month. Total 
number of residential sanitation customers is approximately 4,500.  $.5 x 12 x 4500 = $27,000 increased revenue

Currently, the City of Cayce does not charge a fee to register a house on the property registration program. However, a late fee is assessed 
if a property owner registers after the deadline. Additionally, a business license is required by a property owner if they rent the house and 
earn rental income. If the City charged $25 per property to register (both rented and non-rented), an additional $29,750 could be generated 
in revenue.

The City of Cayce does not currently levy a local accommodations tax on hotel rooms in the City. Only the state accommodations tax is 
levied. Municipal governments may impose a local accommodations tax by ordinance that cannot exceed 3%. Unlike the state 
accommodations tax, local accommodations taxes do not require an advisory committee; the city council is solely responsible for 
approving local accommodations tax expenditures. Local accommodations tax proceeds must be used for tourism-related projects and 
programs. For the City of Cayce, this includes helping to fund the Parks Deparment, Muesum and Park Rangers. Based on the in-City hotel 
gross sales receipts from 2018, at least $262,000 in revenue could be generated if the City of Cayce implemented a 3% local 
accommodations tax. 



 FY20 General Fund Capital Equipment Personnel Requests
5-7-19

General Fund FY20 Request 5-7-19 
Request Notes

1110 Administration
.5 FTE (salary + benefits) $37,109 Moved to Community Relations (Community Programs) cost at $30,000
1 FTE $94,500 $94,500

Total 1110 Admin $131,609 94,500$          

1150 Information Technology
Switches (2) $10,792 $10,792

Total 1150 IT $10,792 $10,792

1181 Finance
1 FTE - Accounts Payable (salary + benefits) $63,542 -$  To be reconsidered for FY21 budget

Total 1181 Finance $63,542 -$  

1190 Public Buildings
Security camera system for Museum, City Hall buildings and Garage $8,309 $8,309

Total 1190 Public Buildings $8,309 $8,309

1210 Public Safety Administration
1 FTE - Training Corporal (salary + benefits) $68,356 $34,178 Mid-year hire/6 months salary and benefits

Total 1210 PS Admin $68,356 $34,178

1212 Public Safety Traffic
2 FTEs - School Resource Officers (salary + benefits, 75% reimbursed) $113,974 $113,974
SRO Equipment  & Vehicles (75% reimbursed) $113,500 $113,500
Replacement vehicles - Traffic (5) $235,000 Lease purchase option
Replacement vehicles - Investigators (2) $94,000 Lease purchase option

Total 1212 PS Traffic $556,474 $227,474

1213 Public Safety Fire
3 FTEs - Firefighters (salaries + benefits) $169,318 $169,318 Full year hire
Equipment for Firefighters $25,000 $25,000
800 radios (2) $11,000 $11,000
Firehouse computer software $6,300 Make request to public safety foundation

Total 1213 PS Fire $211,618 $205,318

1337 Sanitation
1 FTE - Refuse Collector (salary + benefits) $43,088 $21,544 Mid-year hire/6 months salary and benefits
Roll carts (500) $32,000 Remove; charge to Sanitation special revenue fund
Auto garbage truck $260,000 Lease purchase option; estimate 3 months of payments
4x4 pickup truck (not a replacement) $32,000 Lease purchase option

Total 1337 Sanitation $367,088 $21,544

1465 Museum
New changing exhibit space $6,000 Remove; charge to Museum special revenue fund

Total 1465 Museum $6,000 -$  

1720 Parks
1 FTE - Groundskeeper I (salary + benefits) $39,547 $39,547 Full year hire
1 FTE - Equipment Operator I (salary + benefits) $50,665 $50,665 Full year hire
Crew Cab truck $35,000 Lease purchase
Walker Mower for Knox Abbott $27,000 Lease purchase
Mini skid loader for Riverwalk Park $28,000 Lease purchase

Total 1720 Parks $180,212 $90,212

1750 Garage
Wash Rack $100,000 50,000$          Split 50/50 with Utility Fund
Tire balancer $10,000 $10,000
Tire machine $12,000 $12,000

Total 1750 Garage $122,000 72,000$          

TOTAL $1,726,000 764,327$        

Total Capital Equipment $1,045,901 240,601$        
Total Personnel $680,099 $523,726

$711,000 Total lease purchase options (cost savings)
$194,951 Removal options 
$151,309 Savings hiring personnel mid-year



      APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CAYCE CITY HALL 
1800 12TH STREET, CAYCE SC 

Monday, February 25, 2019 
6:00 PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by Chair Ed Fuson.  Members
present were Maudra Brown, Robert Power, Stockton Wells, and Joe Long.
Chris Kueny and Chris Jordan were absent excused.  Staff present were
Carroll Williamson and Monique Ocean.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Maudra Brown made a motion to approve the minutes of the January 28,
2019 meeting.  Robert Power seconded the motion.  All were in favor.

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION
Monique Ocean affirmed that the media and the public were made aware of the
meeting.

IV. PUBLIC HEARING - Text Amendment 001-19
A Request by the Planning Director of the City of Cayce, SC, to amend the
Zoning Ordinance Article 2 Definitions and Article 8 Table 8-B Number,
Dimension, and Location of Signs Requiring A Permit By Zoning District
to add language concerning Digital Display Signs.   The amended language
imposes specific display criteria for new Digital Display Signs.
a. Opening Statement

Carroll Williamson began by stating that Staff had looked into ways to
update the ordinance for digital signs.  Mr. Williamson stated that, most
likely, there was going to be an increase in the number of requests for digital
signs and the current ordinance did not give a good definition for the current
technology.  Mr. Williamson stated that he researched regulations in West
Columbia, Forest Acres and the town of Lexington to prepare the proposed
ordinance. Mr. Williamson stated the proposed ordinance was meant to stay
in the same spirit of Cayce’s current ordinance. Mr. Williamson stated the
proposed ordinance would not limit colorful backgrounds but would reduce
distractions by requiring longer transition times for changes in messaging.
Mr. Williamson stated the current ordinance limits message changes to 8
times per day and the regulation is difficult to enforce.  Mr. Williamson stated

ITEM VII. A. 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APPROVED MINUTES 
February 25, 2019 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

the proposed ordinance would apply to new signs as well as current digital 
signs, if passed.  

b. Public Testimony 
There was no one from the public to speak for or against Text Amendment 
001-19. 

c. Adjourn Hearing 
The hearing was adjourned and the Planning Commission requested 
additional information on digital signs and to get input from current digital 
sign owners before the proposed ordinance was voted on it.  

 
V. MOTION – Text Amendment 001-19 

Maudra Brown made a motion to table Text Amendment 001-19 until more 
research was completed.  Robert Power seconded the motion.  All were in 
favor.  

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

a. The Planning Commission agreed to move the date for the April meeting 
to April 22, 2019.  

 
VII. OTHER BUSINESS 

There was no other business. 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
Maudra Brown made a motion to adjourn. Joe Long seconded the motion.  All 
were in favor.  

 
A quorum of Council may be present.   

No discussion or action on the part of Council will be taken. 



1 | P a g e  

CITY OF CAYCE 
EVENTS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

Council Chambers 
March 7, 2019 

Present:  Maxine Creamer, Alexis Moore, Johnathon Moore, Cindy 
Pedersen, Rachel Scurry, Tevin Spruill (via telephone), Danny Creamer 

Absent, Excused:  Dave Capps, Frank Dickerson 

City Representatives Present:  Katinia Taylor and James Denny 

Review of Minutes – February 7, 2019  
Chairperson Danny Creamer called the meeting to order. He welcomed potential 
committee member Teresa Mitchell to the meeting. Rachel Scurry made a motion to 
approve the February minutes as written with the correction of striking out the name 
Karen Sanders until the committee can find out if the name is correct. Maxine 
Creamer seconded the motion which was unanimously approved.     

New Cayce Event 
Jonathan Moore the Sub-Committee Chairman for the new Cayce event thanked the 
subcommittee for all of their help and involvement before proposing the new event. 
The event layout and notes are attached to these minutes. 

Mr. Moore stated that he is only giving a proposal, nothing is set in stone and more 
details still need to be put into the event. He informed the committee that the time of 
the event is proposed to be 1pm to 7pm. The time was thought to be a good time 
because of the time of the year and the date would be tentatively Oct. 5th 2019 which 
is the first Saturday in October. That particular date is USC’s football bye week. Ms. 
Pedersen made a motion that the event be held Oct. 5th from 1pm to 7pm and Mrs. 
Moore seconded which was unanimously approved.  Ms. Scurry informed the 
committee that she will not be able to attend because of a schedule conflict but still 
thought that date was a good date to have the event.  

Mr. Moore guided the committee through the event layout using the projector. Mr. 
Denny informed the committee that a section on the event layout that was 
recommended to have closed roads for food trucks and etc. needed to stay open for 
through traffic. The committee understood and agreed. 

Mr. Moore indicated the more vendors the better. He stated that we have sufficient 
power throughout the layout for the vendors. The subcommittee thought the charge 
for vendors that need power would be $175 and vendors without electricity would pay 
$75 but this would be further discussed. Mr. Moore recommended there be 3 or 4 



2 | P a g e  
 
 
 

food trucks for different cultures. Mr. Denny showed the committee where alcohol can 
be served in the park and stated that alcohol has to be served in definite boundaries. 
It was also discussed that someone should check ID’s to make sure under aged 
individuals do not purchase alcohol.   
 
Mr. Moore stated the following equipment would be needed: 20 x 20 tents, port-o-
jons, one large stage for bands, a smaller stage for the DJ, bouncy houses, tables, 
chairs and golf carts. 
 
Mr. Creamer suggested that we also book captain telegram because individuals will 
be parking across 12th Street on Walter Price and at the old Busbee school. He also 
stated that he would like to have a Hispanic band perform at the event because they 
are starting to become a large part of the community.  
 
After looking over the different proposed event names Mrs. Creamer suggested the 
event be called Cayce Family Day. Mr. Moore stated that the naming of the festival 
should happen before the end of the meeting. Mrs. Taylor reminded the committee 
that the Accommodations Tax deadline is Monday, March 11th and that the committee 
indeed needed to have the name of the event and etc. by the end of the meeting. Mr. 
Creamer asked that the name the Cayce Art Festival be removed because of the 
Soiree and also Congaree Music Festival as well because it brings back memories of 
the Congaree Bluegrass Festival. Ms. Scurry made a motion to have the event called 
the Cayce Fall Fest. Mr. Moore seconded the motion which was unanimously 
approved. 
 
Mr. Moore agreed to take charge of the event and Mr. Creamer stated he would be 
there to help in any way possible.  
 
Mr. Creamer recommended the committee use companies that were used in the past 
to purchase the stage paying $1500-$1800 and that same company could provide a 
dance floor and a small platform for a dance floor. He also stated he would check 
around for sound and that Sound Productions is a company that the committee used 
in the past with Mr. Bruce Crouch that would cost approximately $1800. Mr. Creamer 
stated he is a little concerned with where the stage is proposed to be because the 
sound would drown out the kid’s area and the DJ. Mr. Moore stated that the DJ area 
will not be extremely loud because the DJ will not have a lot of equipment, maybe just 
one speaker. Mrs. Moore suggested that the DJ play in between bands changing 
sets. Mr. Creamer suggested the stage be big enough to coordinate with the bands; 
that their drums and etc. be set up to avoid the time it would take to set up in between 
acts. Ms. Pedersen stated that the Salsa Bar on Frink St. has a band perform on 
salsa dancing night that could possibly perform at the event. 
 
Mr. Creamer stated the committee should have an entertainment budget. Not to 
include the stage but to include the sound system, the DJ and the bands.  
 



3 | P a g e  
 
 
 

Mr. Denny agreed to do hayrides for the children and he will make a route. Ms. 
Pedersen suggested to have a sign at the Soiree advertising the Cayce Fall Fest. 
 
Mrs. Taylor informed the committee that the proposed Cayce Fall Fest should go 
before the City Manager for her approval and that the Accommodations Tax 
Committee will not meet until April and Council will look at the accommodations tax 
applications at the May regular council meeting. 
 
Accommodations Tax Request 
Mr. Creamer stated the committee could use the figures from Congaree Bluegrass 
Festival to specify how much it would cost to put on the new event.  The committee 
discussed as a whole the breakdown of the amount of money to ask for in 
accommodations tax funds. These requests are listed below:  

• Entertainment $6000 (Bands and Production) 
• Equipment $6600 (Stage, Dance Floor, Tables, Tents, Golf Carts, Trolley, 

Bouncy Houses, Port-o-Jons) 
• Advertising $3550 (Signage 10 4 X 4, Billboard, Flyers & Posters) 

Decorations and etc. would be budgeted later in planning the event. The committee 
discussed signage being on Frink St, 12th Street, near Krispy Kreme, Guignard Park, 
I-26 and one by the Airport. 
 
Mr. Moore made a motion to request $15,000 in Accommodations Tax for the Cayce 
Fall Fest and keep the request of $10,000 for H-Tax and Mrs. Moore seconded his 
motion which was unanimously approved.  
 
Other Business 
Ms. Teresa Mitchell informed that committee that she is interested in joining the 
committee. Ms. Scurry made a motion to recommend council approve her for 
appointment to the committee and Mrs. Creamer seconded the motion which was 
unanimously approved. 
 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Katinia Taylor 
 



 

 



Cayce Festival Proposal 

 

Name of event:  
Everyone's Cayce Festival  
Cayce Arts Festival 
Congaree Music Festival 
Cayce Fall Fest 
(We can vote on a name at the meeting) 
 
Time: 1 pm to 7 pm 
 
Date: First Saturday in October (Tentatively October 5th) 
 
Attendance: Expecting 2500 People 
 
Events/Activities Planned:  
2-4 Bands (2 Big Bands, 2 Small Bands)  
1 DJ 
At least 45 Vendors ($125 Charge with electricity 
$75 charge without electricity, will need to know how much power each vendor will need)  
3-4 Food Trucks 
 
Licensing/Services Needed:  
ABSCAB License  
Bar Service  
ID Check Person  
 
Major Equipment Needed:  
Two 20 x 20 Tents 
Large Stage for 2 bands  
small stage for DJ  
3 Bouncy Houses for Kids  
8 Port-a- potties  
Volunteer Tent  
20 Tables 
Golf Carts for moving band equipment 
 

Notes: 



Cayce Museum Commission Meeting Minutes 
3 April 2019 

Members present: Alice Brooks, Archie Moore, Cindy Peake, Dale Gaskins, Judy 
Corbitt, Marion Hutson and Mary Sharpe.  Approved absence A.G. Dantzler. 

Also Present: City Manager Tracy Hegler, Municipal Clerk Mendy Corder, Museum 
Curator Jerry Kirkland, Museum Assistant Andy Thomas  

• Commission Chairman Archie Moore called the Meeting to order.

• Commissioner Hutson offered the invocation.

• Commission Chairman Archie Moore introduced a guest, Mr. John Howell - noted
SC Historian and Genealogist.

• The minutes from the 6 March 2019, meeting were presented for review.
Commissioner Peake moved to accept and Commissioner Gaskins seconded the
motion and the motion carried by unanimous vote.

• Museum Curator Jerry Kirkland

A. The museum staff has been very busy working on several exhibits (Dixie Youth,
cookhouse, smokehouse and fire truck) and will be busy on missions offsite for
several Saturdays this spring.  Staff members will be at “Tartan Day South” (6
April), Nature in the Park (13 April), and the “Soiree on State” (27 April).

B. We will be receiving tickets from the Fireflies Minor League Baseball team and
they will allow us to have a presentation at their August 16, 2019 home game for
the 1964 Dixie Youth Baseball Champions. Mayor Partin is expected to
participate in the proceedings.  All living players have been contacted except
“Tommy Mack” who reportedly still lives in Cayce.  We will attempt to contact
him in the near future.

C. Mr. George Williams has donated photos of the Cayce House.  These photos show
not only the home but family members and include individual’s names and dates
inscribed on the back.  Chairman Archie Moore added that these photos were part
of a group that were made available at the auction of Dan Cayce’s home many
years past but were too expensive for the museum to purchase at that time.



D. Dan Sharp and Mike Bozeman - City of Cayce staff, will donate a collection of 
WWI and WWII military medicines.  We will have the opportunity to display a 
few of the very rare unopened medical kits from those wars.  
 

• Andy Thomas,  Museum Assistant 
 
A. Andy cooked a now famous colonial “Chicken Pot Pie” on 30 March 2019 for 

museum guests.  It was reportedly delicious and went quickly. 
 

B. Provided a copy of the museums monthly expense as processed thru the City 
of Cayce. 

 
C. Provided a copy of the visitor worksheet tracking: attendance numbers, 

days/months as well as the state/region from where they reside. 
 
D. A Strategic Plan “Dream Big” form was provided to all commissioners to add 

their thoughts and wishes for the continued growth of the museum.  The date 
for the form to be turned in is 4/17/2019.  Commissioner Shape made note of 
her frustration (shared by all) with our plans, as we have had many great ideas 
but little or no follow thru.  City Manager Tracy Hegler understood her 
frustration and added that we should think big and that she would help us in 
the completing our goals for the museum.  Commissioner Gaskins asked City 
Manager Tracy Hegler how much of the building fund (not city appropriated) 
remained to assist in the completion of projects.  City Manager Tracy Helger 
did not know the exact amount, but it was probably in the $27,000 range.  She 
also stated that she would have staff research it and get back to us with a 
correct value. 

 
A. Mr. John Howell – visitor 

 
A. Mr. Howell discussed the recent attempts to locate the “real” gravesite of Emily 

Geiger and the Threewitts home and cemetery.  A loosely assembled team of 
volunteers (Granby Chapter of the Daughters of the Revolution, Museum 
Commissioners, Saxe Gotha Historical Society and others) cleared the grave of 
Josephine Love Rivers Threewitts.  A blank limestone headstone (?) was located 
and repeated attempts to identify and any inscriptions have failed.  
 

B.  The volunteers visited the reported home of a Threewitts family member.  The 
home is reported to be approximately 200 years old and had been modified to 
meet modern standards (electricity, HVAC and vinyl siding). He noted that this 
home would be a great project for a history group to obtain and relocate to nearby 
property. 



• Commissioner Gaskins 
 
Commissioner Gaskins discussed the potential for the submission of a draft/pilot 
TV show tentatively titled “Finding Emily Geiger”.  The Saxe Gotha Historical 
Society is taking the lead on the project, but it will take many groups to draft, 
fund and produce a produce worth submitting to the cable networks that may be 
interested.  This started much discussion, supporting topics (including the 
Webberites) and potential points of contact for getting the project started. 
Commissioner Gaskins asked City Manager Tracy Hegler if the City of Cayce 
could/would authorize the use of the Museum and City properties in the filming 
such a project.  City Manager Tracy Hegler stated that she would seek guidance of 
the City of Cayce Commissioners and legal staff on the use of the museum and 
city properties in such an endeavor. 

 
• A motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Sharpe and seconded by  

Commissioner Brooks – the meeting adjourned. 
 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

May 7, 2019 

All open positions will be advertised on the City’s website and Facebook page. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

BEAUTIFICATION FOUNDATION – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
Mr. Ross Shealy and Mr. Butch Kelly’s terms on the Beautification Foundation have expired.  Mr. 
Shealy and Mr. Kelly’s have both served on the Foundation since 2010.  Their reappointment 
applications are attached for Council’s review. 

EVENTS COMMITTEE – ONE (1) POSITION  
The Events Committee has one open position and has received a potential member application from 
Ms. Evony Reed.  Ms. Reed attended a recent Events Committee Meeting and the Committee 
recommends her for appointment.  Her potential member application is attached for Council’s review. 

  MUSEUM COMMISSION – ONE (1) POSITION 
  Mr. Dale Gaskins’ term on the Museum Commission expired in April.  He has served on the Commission 
 since 2015 and the Commission recommends him for reappointment.  His reappointment application is 

  attached for Council’s review.  

  PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION – TWO (2) POSITIONS  
 The Public Safety Foundation has four open positions and has received a potential member 
application from Ms. Ashley Hunter and Ms. Karen Sanders.  Their applications are attached for   
Council’s review.     

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
The following positions have been postponed by Council until receipt of potential member 
applications. 

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX COMMITTEE – ONE (1) POSITION 
The open position must be filled by someone from the motel industry in Cayce. 

CONSOLIDATED BOARD OF APPEALS – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
Members who serve on this Board must be either an Engineer, Contractor, Architect or Design 
Professional. There are no recommendations at this time. 

MUSEUM COMMISSION – ONE (1) POSITION 
Mr. Leo Redmond resigned therefore there is one open position.  

ITEM VII. B. 



CITY OF CAYCE 

POTENTIAL MEMBER APPLICATION 

Name: k.£D/J I -rfl £vtJJ./\{ Kt:t:..b
City, State, Zip C'/J'{<!I Sc.., t52fi!J33 

'

Home Address: //1-/op� 
 
S7

Telephone: 1P�
Resident of Cayce: �es D No 

E-Mail: ,11'/a:J .. �
Number of Years: 39 f ,p_ 

Please indicate the Committee(s) for which you are applying: 
D Accommodations Tax Committee D Cayce Housing Authority 
D Consolidated Board of Appeals D Municipal Election Comm 
D Planning Commission D Board of Zoning Appeals 

(gEvents Committee 
D Museum Commission 

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic violation? 
□ Yes ilNo If yes, specify below.

Work Address 

Company: KELL'{ SEtw 'C-€ s (8 t'Bs) Position: �(}f,.J I c,4-L IP.J(!..I 1€f2_ 
Address: ':/to t Peee..,UA-L R % City, State, Zip (!d.LJ.IWJ..(lf s:;. d_-p.,:l 1 

fu,� Telephone: 't(X)3.IP1!i?e90 //;;J., � E-Mail:Le-otJITA /2.eei) e �..5SC, � 
Work Experience: {If& Lfll-S, f!,uj.1�-SS A;fl.J!+tfST e}(/)ef2.l&µ(J}; 1/J 7AV" 
Vg.oU;SSttJG---, QfHee �e,Eµq;, oJ(!JJ..l.l±S @J£Ci1 /IAfttJA:C�c:tfT {- !!5ertJ G-rtAl

ex-E.e.u.�1vG A-S5,s,.A-t'JT Educational Background:____________________ 
) MBA aJ B1rsrve55 A-oMuJi87J17taJ Cu1.11cJ __ oF //c/tJt=.A-11 x 

Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations): 
P:oe«Mlie ::1&S, MA-S·te'l! Af eMBl::-1? 

VolunteerWork: CJ/µgcJ:± ftCPU1111:=· S {('!(v1/Z. �'1--. u�,
'f@1tf Assrs--(4,J�, J?te,y;; t:1-llss --Y€!4� 

Hobbles: ]<&:A1>f ,J� Af)b L£./J{U.J/tJG. /t[�v.J -rilt/0 �
:[12.fi:<Ie Liu & 

Return to: 
Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 

City of Cayce, PO Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171-2004
Telephone: 803-550-9557 • Fax: 803-796-9072 • Email: mcorder@caycesc.gov 



CITY OF CAYCE 

BEAUTIFICATION FOUNDATION 

RE-APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

Name: 'f?os5 5Hc /JLi 
Home Address:  +f [Lf..AJ0:5v C1fl. City, State, Zip C/JYCC SC. '2 Cfo 3 J 
Telephone:.3f5' E-Mail Address

Cell Phone: 

7 /5 Resident of Cayce: t-0 Yes □,, 
Number of Years _____ 

Business Located in Cayce: □ Yes 10'No Number of Years ____ _ 

Have you ever been convict✓of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic
violation? □ Yes dfN� - . If yes, specify below:

Work Address 

Company: f/JJ'INJ'1.JCJfL-rH. S,tv(t.£'2 &vo) Ell.Position mtrl/\/t.Y 
Address: _________________________ _ 

City, State, Zip __ CO __ LU_'fl/\._�_l"-_u _5_c.,, ____ Telephone: _________ _ 

Fax: E-Mail ------------

Work Experience: ______________________ _ 

Educational Background: ____________________ _ 

Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations): 

Volunteer Work: -----------------------

Hobbies: _________________________ _ 

Return to: 
Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 

City of Cayce, P.O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171-2004 
Telephone: 803-796-9020 • Fax: 803-796-9072 



CITY OF CAYCE 

BEAUTIFICATION FOUNDATION 

REAPPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

Name: --,,c--�-���=';�--------------------

□ No Number of Years _ _u:�=-=---

Business Located in Cayce: □ Yes lid"No Number of Years ____ _ 

Have you ever been convict�of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic 
violation? □ Yes �No If yes, specify below: 

Work Address 

Company: 176@/t t:2#cJ'J:i,A/J5
Address: t:/i1 d);.&46c ?V.

City, State, Zip @,J6b, ze 24�33
7 

Fax: ____________ _ 

Position _ _,£?�.:._M'--"�=(1=J: ____ _ 

Telephone: 4/y/,fS'"1 
E-Mail (/7,A-p� M�,#. �Nl

Work Experience: _______________________ _ 

Educational Background: ---=A--'-��,_. �l/-=5�C==---------------

Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations): 

Volunteer Work: 
------------------------

Hobbies: __________________________ _ 

Return to: 
Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 

City of Cayce, P.O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171-2004 
Telephone: 803-796-9020 • Fax: 803-796-9072 



CITY OF CAYCE 

COMMITTEE MEMBER REAPPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

Name: /I ,J-Yr'y IJ A--LJE-
 1

Home Address:  /(11-f"'?#,A/l-y /iV)(_ City,State,Zip C�
> 

yClt_ 5L ;2-ft?!'f 
> 

Telephone: frtJf- E-Mail Address /3,t/fft:Ju/J,, ;V�I 

Resident of Cayce: @ { No Number of Years __._!---'tf ___ _

Please check the Committee for which you are applying for reappointment: 
{ Accommodations Tax Committee 
{ Cayce Housing Authority 
{ Consolidated Board of Appeals 

{ Beautification Board 
�useum Commission 
{ Board of Zoning Appeals 

{ Event Committee 
{ Planning Commission 

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic 
violation? 0 Yes � If yes, specify below: 

Work Address 

Company: Ir It, fr-Yl4-d Position __________ _ 

Address: ____________________________ _ 

City, State, Zip ____________ Telephone: __________ _ 

Fax: _____________ _ E-Mail ____________ _ 

Work Experience: 5' T.KJ..-n cl;:- 5 L 3 !2 'Y fl 1-r s-, 

Educational Background: ____,8,"-"Vf_:___-__:_u.:.....f=--:::C..;___:.-_.L.A=c;,--=Lc..,,.)''----=--:5--=e,C-'CJ....:.;� '-c.:...._....cc...:..11..::...� --------

Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations):

CrJt {A,tf) 51 5,4/;_ 61r1cl. 
7

1 Tr1t1½"4r�✓ )A-xt r;;,,_n)j l/;7/4.-£;,H .fp&/-'f;-
volunteer Work: 5 C ,Al? A,t," /;,.y-;> /J1 u,;,(u m/ 5L )t� 'Mi C j &-ILA''#'-z

5 J;,../2, 7/r f .{,L /} ,,,,_gzT C � ar� A
Hobbies: 8 5' f 1 (A. 9- J-/;zft)try 1 

C/ 7 7 > 

Return to: 
Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 

City of Cayce, P .0. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171-2004 
Telephone: 803-550-9557 • Fax: 803-796-9072 • mcorder@cityofcayce-sc.gov 



CITY OF CAYCE PUBLIC SAFETY 

FOUNDATION APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

Name: Ashley Hunter 

Home Address:  City, State, Zip: Cayce SC 29033 Telephone:  E-Mail Address: Resident of 

Cayce: □ Yes □ No Number ofYears 5 

Business Located in Cayce: □ Yes □ No Number of Years _____ _ 

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic 

violation? □ Yes □ No If yes, specify below: 

Work Address 

Company: MPA Strategies Position: CEO 

Address: 2805 Millwood Ave, Suite E 

City, State, Zip: Columbia, SC 29205 

E-Mail ahunter@mpastrategies.com

Work Experience: Lobbyist and VP of Government Affairs, Capitol Consultants 

CEO, MPA Strategies 

Educational Background: B.A. University of South Carolina (Columbia) 

Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations): 

Concord Park Marketing Committee, Ambassador for the Lexington Medical Center 

Foundation, former Chairman of the Board for the Healing Families Foundation, 2018 

Women of Influence 

Volunteer Work: Guardian Ad Litem since 2005, Serve & Connect 

Return to: 
Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 

City of Cayce, P.O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171-2004 
Telephone: 803-796-9020 · Fax: 803-796-9072 



CITY OF CAYCE 

POTENTIAL MEMBER APPLICATION 

�/' e r.-J J' � J cu11./'e ,J

Home 
Name: 

Address:  8 e-11...fvn V-

 

City, State, Zip Coj:cc J',C_ =2,9f)!s3'
7,,,!J:!Jfr/ E-Mail: 

.- {;:_ lfel�c0rn

Resident 
Telephone: 

of 
ifJJ 
Cayce: �es D No

Num

Please indicate the Committee(s) for which you are applying: 

D Accommodations Tax Committee �ayce Housing Authority
D Consolidated Board of Appeals
D Planning Commission

D Municipal Election Comm
D Board of Zoning Appeals

ef �� �-�-..,��a._-�,,�

�vents Committee
D Museum Commission

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic violation? 

□ Yes ;;rNo If yes, specify below.

Work Address 

Company: A-vtea1111 � //.eaf-1/, Co../L Position: f-<;V
j 

_ __,_....;__ _____ _ 

Address: (,.,cf e. fl t/; I/ e City, State, Zip _ _,S/t="�-------
Telephone: t-foo--·7--<o

--
-/29.s:P E-Mail: M-frc c../ /'C?..mrtnc,.-

./-r � I- - t/ O o< cf

Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations):
C o-.yoe /J..Jb rA-eJJ J C !u b -

Volunteer Work: h () 4 ,t',:::<.Ai<J -

Hobbies: Co....m _ w 1 

f1J� c/ /YIOJ .f!-C(f(t/dJ1 :i \

Return to: 
Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 

City of Cayce, PO Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171-2004 
Telephone: 803-550-9557 • Fax: 803-796-9072 • Email: mcorder@caycesc.gov 


	Agenda
	Item I. B. - April 2, 2019 Council Mtg Minutes
	Item I. B. - April 24, 2019 Council Mtg Minutes
	Item I. C. - Judges Oath
	Item IV. A. - Midlands Gives Proclamation
	Item IV. B. - Safe Boating Proclamation
	Item IV. C. - Municipal Clerk Proclamation
	Item V. A. - White Paper Rezoning 1908 State Street
	Item V. A. - 1908 State Street Ordinance
	Item V. A. - 1908 State St map
	Item V. B. - White Paper I-77 Gateway Design Overlay District
	Item V. B. - Text Ordinance I-77 Design Overlay District_Final
	Item V. B. - Revised Section 6.10
	Item V. C. - White Paper Map amendment I-77 overlay
	Item V. C. - Map Ordinance RE-zone I77 Design Overlay District Map amendment (MA002-19)5-3-19
	Item V. C. - Map Amendment Attachment
	Item V. D. - White Paper Firearms Ordinance Amendment
	Item V. D. Firearms Exceptions Ordinance
	Item V. E. - White Paper CMCOG Hazard Mitigation Plan 2021_TH edits
	Item V. E. - CMCOG Letter of Agreement
	Item V. F. - White Paper Supportive Municipal Judge Agreement
	Item V. F. - Supportive Municipal Bond Agreement with Lexington County
	Item V. H. - White Paper Budget
	Item V. H. - Budget Exhibit A UF Capital Equip - Personnel Requests 5-7-19
	Item V. H. - Budget Exhibit B Revenue options
	Item V. H. - Budget Exhibit C GF Capital Equip - Personnel Requests 5-7-19
	Item VII. A. - Planning Commission Minutes
	Item VII. A. - Events Committee Meeting minutes
	Item VII. A. - Cayce Museum Commission Meeting Minutes 4-3-2019
	Item VII. B.  - Appts & Reappts
	Item VII. B. - Applications

